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ANNEXURE-1

Directors report to the financial statement as per section 184 of company act 1994.

The Director also report that:

The financial statements of the company present true and fair view of company’s state of
affairs result of its operation, cash flows and changes of equity.

Books of Accounts have been maintained properly as required by the law.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in formulating the financial
statements and accounting estimates were reasonable applied and prudent.

The financial statement was prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard
(IAS) as applicable in Bangladesh.

Internal Control System is sound in design and implemented and monitored effectively.
There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern
as the company is under the control of the Government.

ANNEXURE-II

Pattern of shareholding position:on june 30,2023

As per revised Corporate Governance Code under section 1.5(xxiii) issued by BSEC.
SL.No. Name of Shareholder ' Status Number % of
of shares | shareholding
i Parent/Subsidiary/Associates and other N/A N/A
related parties
ii Directors
1 Mr.Md. Arifur Rahman Apu (Grade-01) Director(Nominated) - -
2 Mr. Pulok kanti Borua Director(Nominated) - =
3 Khondoker Azim Ahmed NDC Director(Nominated) - -
4 Eng. Ataur Rahman Khan (Grade-02) Director(Nominated) - -
5 Md Monirul Islam,FCMA Director(Independent) - -
6 Mr.Md. Jasim Uddin Akond, FCMA Director(Independent) | - -
7 Mr. Md. Rabbik Hasan, FcMA Managing Director N/A N/A
iii CEO/CFO/CS/Head of Internal Audit N/A N/A
and their Spouses and Minor Children
iv Executives N/A N/A
\ Shareholders holding 10% or more N/A N/A
voting interest in the company
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Annexure-(I1IT)

Attendance at Board Meeting during the year 2022-2023.

As per revised Corporate Governance Guideline under section 1.5(xxii) issued by BSEC.

Composition Position No.of Board No. of Board
Meeting held Meeting
7 during the year attendance
Mr.Md. Arifur Rahman Apu (Grade-01) Chairman 5 5
Mr. Pulok kanti Borua Director 5 1
Khondoker Azim Ahmed NDC Director 5 2
Eng. Ataur Rahman Khan (Grade-02) Director 5 1
Md Monirul Islam,FCMA , Independent Director 5 3
Mr.Md. Jasim Uddin Akond, FCMA Independent Director 5 5
Mr. Md. Rabbik Hasan, FCMA Managing Director 5 5
Mr. Md. Anowerul Alam Director 5 1
Mr. Md. Asraf Ali Director 5 3

Audit Committee Meeting and Attendance during the year 2022-2023.

Name of the Audit Position No.of Audit Committee No. of Audit Committee
Committee Members Meeting held during the year Meeting attendance
Mr.Md. Jasim Uddin Chairman 4 4

Akond, FCMA

Ekl:l)(gldoker Azim Ahmed Meiiibes 4 )

Eng. Ataur Rahman Khan Member 4 4

(Grade-02)

Mr. Md. Anowerul Alam Member 4 2

Annexure-(IV)
Five Years Key Operating and Financial Data:

As per revised Corporate Governance Guideline under section 1.5(xix) issued by BSEC.

Particulars 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023
Operating Data:
Revenue 268,492,016 366,726,440 330,944,931 311,450,924 345,665,924
Gross Profit/Loss -274,176,172 -145,906,378 -163,499,059 -170,232,673 -195,102,300
Net OperatingProfit/Loss -621,560,459 -544,808,348 | -6,86,827,742 -526,213,172 -531,062,470
Net Profit/Loss after Tax -623,417,525 -562,129,747 | -69,58,47,993 -529,632,169 -534,419,024
Earning Per Share -104 -93.69 -115.97 -88.27 -89.07
Balance Sheet Data: 7
Shareholder’s Equity -3,646,617,969 | -4,208.747,716 | -490,45,95,709 | -5,434,227,879 -5,952.,446,902
Total Fixed Assets 109,007,354 116,254,098 121,275,351 124,107,733 140,818,910
Total Current Assets 403,958,310 418,561,146 358,015,884 270,779,573 313,454,775
Total Long Tern 1,929,205,547 | 2,269,503,858 | 2,671,716,136 2,966,755,303 3,398,711,661
Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities 2,230,378,086 | 2,474,059,101 | 2,712,170,807 2,862,359,881 3,008,008,926
Other Data:
Crashing Days 101 85 72 44 41
Cane Crash (M.T.) 83,504.25 70,689.80 58,951.40 35,698.05 35171.66
| Sugar Production (M.T.) 5,222.00 5153.00 3908.50 2,498.00 2322
Recovery Rate 6.25% 7.29 6.64 7.00 6.61
Share Outstanding 6000000 6000000 6000000 6000000 6000000
Face Value (Taka) 10 10 10 10 10
Current Ratio (Time) 0.18 0.17 0.13 0.095 .10
Debt Equity Ratio(Time) -1.14 -1.13 -1.10 -1.07 -1.08
Gross Profit Ratio (%) ' -102.12 -39.79 -49.40 - 54.65 -56.44
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ANNEXURE-V

Report of the Audit Committee

Report of the audit committee on June 30, 2023. As required by the revised Corporate Governance Code
under section 5.7 issued by BSEC.

Dear Shareholder’s,

Assalamu Alikum Wa-Rahmatullah

The formation and operation of the Audit Committee is based on the underlying corporate laws and
regulations, currently accepted best practice and latest corporate governance of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Composition of the Committee

In accordance with the requirements of Corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC, the Audit Committee
of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd.(ZBSM) consists of 3 (three) members from the Board of Directors
including one Independent Director. The Company Secretary is working as member secretary of the
committee.

Committee Meeting

The committee held 4 (four) meeting during the financial year 2022-2023.Audit Committee examined and
reviewed the Statement of financial position along with other financial statements of the company during the
year submitted by M/S Mahfel Haq & Co. Chartered Accountants and recommended to the place before the
Board Meeting.

Role & Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. Review and examined the draft balance sheet, financial statement and recommended to place before
Board of Directors for their consideration and approval.

2. Review the quarterly and 1% quarter financial statements of accounts for proper submission of the
same to the shareholders and regulatory authorities.

3. Audit Committee reviews the integrity of financial statement of the Company to ensure that these
reflect true and fair view of the company’s state of the year ended 30" June 2023.

4, Reviewing Management and Internal Auditor’s report on the effectiveness of systems for internal
financial control, financial reporting and risk management.

5. Reporting to the Board of Directors on internal audit finding from time to time considering the

significance of the issues.

Committee Report Summary
The Audit Committee carried out its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference. The main
activities carried out by the Committee were as follows:
1. Oversee the financial reporting process.

2. Worked with the Management to step up the Internal audit Function.

3. Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles..

4. Reviewed the external audit report for the Company with the external Auditor.

5. Reviewed along with the management, quarterly, half yearly and the annual financial statements

before submission to the Board for approval.
6. Made recommendation to increase operational efficiency and to ZBSM profitable by increasing
production and sales to reduce average overhead expense of product..

On behalf of the Committee

2

Mr. Md. Jasim Uddin Akond, FcMA
Chairman
Audit Committee

>



Annexure-VI
Brief Resume of the Directors

Directors who seek re-appointment and newly appointed of Independent Director as per revised Corporate
Governance Code under section 1.5 (xxiv) issued by BSEC.

Mr. Sheikh Shoebul Alam Npc(Grade-01)

Presently Mr. Sheikh Shoebul Alam holds the position of Chairman at Bangladesh Sugar & Food Industries
Corporation (BSFIC) under the administrative control of Ministry of Industries. He was born in the district
of Narail.His parents name are Mr. Abdus Salam Sheikh and Mrs Begum Tohuran Nesa. He successfully
complted his Honors degree on zoology, M.sc on Fisheries. Mr. Alam joind in Bangladesh civil service
(Administration) in 1993. After Joining of the Bangladesh civil service Mr. Alam completed MBA and MGs
degree. He has garnered professional experience across various districts like Barisal, Chuadanga,
Joypurhat, Madaripur, Jessore etc, assuming diverse rols at different professions. In his professional journey,
he has assumed pivotal role within prominent government Institutions. Commencing as joint secretary at the
Ministry of public Administration, Progressing to the role of Additional Secretary at the Ministry of Health
of Family welfare after that he plays a vital role on the Ministry of Expartriats welfare and overseas
Employment Further demonstrating versatility, he served as Registrar at Reristrar of Joint Stock Companies
and Firms (RJSC) under the Ministry of Commeree. During his astourding professional career, he also
visited an astonishing number of different foreign countries including Singapore, Thailand, UK, USA,
Canada, Switzerland, France, Italy, Kenya, China, Japan, India etc.

Mr. Pulok kanti Borua

Mr Pulak Kanti Barua, Joint Secretary to the Government of Peoples Republic of Bangladesh is currently
working as director (Cane Department and Research) of Bangladesh Sugar and Food industries Corporation
(BSFIC). He was born in 1965in Chattagram. He obtained his B.S.c Ag (Hons) Degree from Bangladesh
Agricultural University and MBA in finance and Banking from International Islamic University. He joined
Bangladesh Civil Service in 1994and has been working in different discipline and areas. He got different
training in home and abroad in different areas including Public Procurement Rules (PPR), good agricultural
practices, small and medium industries —management, project management, project monitoring and
evaluation. Besides this, he involves with different social and professional works. He was Finance Secretary
of Bangladesh Bouddha samity, the largest public organization of Bangladeshi Buddhists. He is a life
member of Krishibid Institution Bangladesh (KIB), Bangabandhu krishibid porishod (BKP), JICA Alumni,
Association, Executive Member of Shere Bangla Agricultural University Alumni Association and joint
security of 13 BSC forum He visited China, Japan, India, Indonesia, Thailand, Singapore, Turkey, Malaysia,
Russia, Ukrainian, South Korea, Italy for training Purpose.

Eng. Ataur Rahman Khan (Grade-02)
Md. Ataur Rahman khan is working as the Director ( Production & Engineering) Grade-2 of Bangladesh

Sugar & Food Industries Corporation (BSFIC) and nominated as Director of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills ltd.
He was born in 1965 in 15 November at Bogura district. His father's name is Md. Abdul Bari Khan and
mother’s name is Rahima Begum . He has obtained his B.Sc Engineering degree in Electrical and
Electronic from Khulna University of Engineering and Technology (KUET) and M.Sc Engineering degree in
Electrical Power System from Bangaldesh University of Engineering and Technology (BUET). He joined
as an Assistant Engineer (Electrical) at Natore Sugar Mills Ltd. and serve Pabna Sugar Mills Ltd. At time of
his work span he is successfully completed erection and commissioning of Pabna Sugar Mills Ltd.

He worked in BSFIC in Multidisciplinary Audit Team, Inventory, Deputy Manager (ICT), Manager
(ICT), DGM (ICT) and GM (ICT) in MIS division . He also worked as Chief (Inspeetion and Inquiry),
Chief of Personel (COP) and Chief (Purchase) in BSFIC, Dhaka. He also successfully completed a number
of professional training and inspection in the country and abroad. He is a life fellow of Institution of
Engineer's Bangladesh (IEB).

5




ANNEXURE-VII
Compliance of Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin /80 dated 03,June,2018
1. Board of Directors:
1.1 Board Size:
Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd. Board of Director consists of 07 (seven) members including 2 (two)
independent Directors which complies with the requirements by the regulations of BSEC.

1.2 Independent Directors:

(i) The requirement as prescribed under the sub-clause (b) of BSEC Notification under
reference had been fulfilled.
(i1) The appointment of Independent Director has been approved by the Board of Directors

and shall be approved by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
(iii) The Board has laid down a code of conduct of all Board members and a record of
compliance of the code has been maintained.

(iv) The tenure of Independent Director nominated shall be 3(three) years which may be
extended for 1 (one) term only.

1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID):
(1) Appointed Independent Directors (ID) are highly knowledgeable and qualified person.
(ii) They are able to ensure compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate laws and can
make meaningful contribution to business of the company.
(ii1) No relaxation of the qualification of ID is required.

1.4 Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer:
Different individuals have been appointed for the post of the Chairperson of the Board and
Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Their roles and responsibilities

have been defined clearly.

1.5 The Director’s Report to Shareholders:
All requirements have been fulfilled properly.

1.6 Meeting of the Board of Directors:
The Company conducts its Board Meeting and fulfilled all requirements according to the
Notification of BSEC guidelines.

1.7 Code of Conduct for the Chairpersons, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer:
All requirements have been fulfilled properly.

2. Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company:
There is no Subsidiary Company of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd.

3. Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS):
Four persons have been appointed for the post of MD or CEO, CFO, HIAC and the CS. The MD or
CEO, CFO, HIAC and the CS attend the meeting regularly and fulfilled all duties.

4. Board of Directors Committee
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board has Audit Committees:
(1) Audit Committee. and
(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

5. Audit Committee:
The Board has Constituted an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board for the Company
according to the notification of BSEC guidelines.

o9



5.1, Constitution of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee comprises of 3(three) members including 1(one) Independent Director. All
the members of the Committee are Literate on financial management and able to analyze and
interpret financial statements effectively. The company Secretary acts as Secretary of the committee.

5.2. Chairman of Audit Committee:
The Independent Director has been appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He also
attend the Annual General Meeting flowing the BSEC guidelines.

5.3. Meeting of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee shall conduct at least four meetings in a financial year.

5.4. Role of Audit Committee:
The Committee has performed its duties and responsibilities according to the gridlines given by
BSEC.

5.5. Reporting of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors time to time. It immediately informs Board

True and fair view of the financial statements.

5.6. Reporting of the shareholders and General Investors:
The Audit Committee reports has been disclosed in the Annual General Meeting of Zeal Bangla
Sugar Mills Ltd.

6.00 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration committee as a sub-committee of the
Board for the company according to the notification of BSEC Guidlines.

6.1. Constitution of the NRC:
The NRC Comprise of 3(three) members including 1 (one) Independent Director. All Members of the

committee are non-excutive directors and nominated and appointed by the board. The Company Secretary
are as Secretary of the committee.

6.2. Chairperson of the NRC:
The Independent Director has been appointed as the chairperson of the NRC. He also attend the
Annual General Meeting flowing the BSEC guidlines.

6.3. Meeting of the NRC:
The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial Year.

6.4. Role of NRC:
The committee has performed its duties and responsible according to the guidlines given by BSEC.

6.5 Reporting of the NRC
The NRC report has been discloed in the Anual General Meeting of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd.

7. External Statutory Auditors:
The Board has recommended the Statutory Auditor of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd.and approved By
the Shareholders at the AGM as per BSEC guidelines strictly.

8.Maintaining a website by the Company:
The Company has official website and disclose information

9. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance:
The provision of BSEC regulation has been fulfilled regarding the Compliance and reporting

of corporate governance.
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Annexure — VIII

Statement of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Managing Director/CFO under clause
1.5(XXV)

In accordance with the notification of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission No
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018.

As per above clause I undersigned hereby and certify that:

The Company has complied appropriate accounting policies and estimation as per Companies Act
1994, International Accounting Standard (IAS), International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)
and other applicable Laws and Regulations for preparation of financial statements.

The Selling price of Sugar is lower than higher production cost to higher cane price and lower
recovery rate of Sugar production, as well as higher interest rate of bank loan. As a result loss
incurred during this period and also net operating cash flow and NAV is negative

Zeal Bangla Sugar mills Ltd is making significant contribution to the economy through regional
development, poverty alleviation and employment.

A Road Map for 5 Years has been drawn up to increase the yield of Sugarcane and Increase Sugar

extraction rate to benefit the mills by producing quality Sugarcane through Improve varities of
Sugarcan.

2

Mr. Md. Rabbik Hasan, Fcma
Managing Director
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Annexure-IX

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
For the year ended on 30 June 2023

Report of the NRC on June 30,2023. As required by the revised Corporate Governance Code under section
6.5 issued by BSEC.

Dear Shareholder’s

Assalamu Alaikum wa-Rahmatullah.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors of Zeal
Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd. fulfill the requirements as per the corporate Governance code notification 2018
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) .

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting were attended by the members of the committee
and the Managing Director, Chief financial officer and Head of Internal Audit of the company on invitation.
The Company Secretary Performed the Secretarial function of the committee. The committee carried out the
duties and responsibilities for Nomination and Remuneration policy.

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:-

In accordance with the requirements of corporate Governance code of (BSEC) the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee consist of 3 (three) members from the Board of Directors including one
Independent Director. The Co mpany Secretary is working as member secretary of the committee.

Major Activities the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in 2022-2023:-
The committee held 1 (one) meeting during the financial year 2022-2023. The major activities the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in 2022-2023are stated below-

1) Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd. is the Concern of Bangladesh Sugar and Food Industries Corporation .
This Corporation is governed by Bangladesh Industrial Enterprise (Nationalization) order 2018.
Reviewed various activities of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd. in the light of Nomination and
Remuneration policy of the company i,e Bangladesh Industrial Enterprise (Nationalization) order
2018, Bangladesh Sugar and Food Industries Corporation Employee Service Regulation 1989,
National pay scale 2015 and Wages and Productivity Commission 2015.

2) Reviewed annual development steps taken, recommend and review the company’s human resources
and training policy.

3) Advise the Management to achieve the sales target so that employees may get marketing incentive.

4) The committe recomendation code of Conduct in the NRC must be taken before the agend placed
to the company board.

On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

/WM/ e
Md Monirul Islam,FCMA
Chairman

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Annexure - A

As per condition No. 1 (5) (XXvi1)
Zeal Bangla Sugar mills Ltd.
Declaration by CEO and CFO

Date:29/10/2023

The Board of Directors

Zeal bangle Sugar mills Ltd.
Dewanganj, Jamalpur.

Subject: Declaration of Financial Statements for the year ended on 30.06.2023
Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5) (XXvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Zeal bangle Sugar mills Ltd for the year ended on 30 June 2023 have
been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from
has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-
1) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2023 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:
(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;
(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(i1) Thereare, to the best of knowledge and belief; no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board of Directors or its member.

Sincerely Yours,

R Pt

Mr. Md. Rabbik Hasan FcMaA Sharif Md. Ziaul Haque
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) (Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)
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Annexure-B
[Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION
Report to the Shareholders
of
Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Limited
On Compliance of the Corporate Governance Code
For the year ended 30™ June 2023

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Zeal
Bangla Sugar Mills Limitedfor the year ended on 30" June, 2023. This Code relates to
the Notification No: BSEC/CMRRCD 2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated - 3"June, 2018,
of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the

Company. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof

as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the

Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the

conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant

Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered

Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with

any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have

required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code
as stipulated in the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission  except under the conditions No. 6(1)(b), 6(1)(c),
6(5)(b)(1)(),6(5)(b)(1)(b),6(5)(b)(ii).

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code.

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws, and

d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

MohammadShahadat Kabir FCMA

Place: Dhaka Partner
Date: November 26, 2023 Cost and Management Accountants
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Annexure-C

[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Zeal Bangla Sugar MillsLimited

Corporate Governance Code

For the year ended 30" June 2023

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Condition No.

Title

Compli

nce Status

Complied

Not
Complied

Remarks (If any)

1.

Board of Directors: -

(1)

Size of the Board of Directors

The total number of members of a company’s Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as “Board™) shall not be less than 5 (five) and more
than 20 (twenty).

Total 8 Directors
including 2
independent

Directors.

1(2)

Independent Directors

All companies shall have effective representation of independent directors on their Boards, so that the Board, as a group, includes
core competencies considered relevant in the context of each company; for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the

following: -

1(2)(@)

At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the company’s
Board shall be independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to
the next integer or whole number for calculating number of independent
director(s);

The number of
independentdirectors
of the company is 02
(Two)

1(2)(b)

For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director-

12)(b)(D)

who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one
percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company;

1(2)(b)(ii)

who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the
company’s any sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of
the company or any of its associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of
the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis of family relationship
and his or her family members also shall not hold above mentioned shares
in the company: Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother,
brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as
family members;

1(2)(b)(iii)

who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2
(two) financial years;

1(2)(b)(iv)

who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise,

with the company or its subsidiary or associated companies;

1(2)(b)(v)

who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate)
holder, director or officer of any stock exchange;

1(2)(d)(vi)

who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or
officer of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market;

L(2)(b)(vii)

who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive
during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory
audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit services or audit firm
conducting special audit or professional certifying compliance of this
Code;

A

1(2)(b)(viii)

who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies;

1(2)(b)(ix)

who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a
defaulter in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank
Financial Institution (NBFI); and

1(2)(b)(x)

who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral
turpitude;

1(2)(c)

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and approved
by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM);

1(2)(d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90
(ninety) days: and

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3
(three)years, which may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only:

Provided that a former independent director may be considered for
reappointment for another tenure after a time gap of one tenure, i.e., three
years from his or her completion of consecutive two tenures [i.e. six

| years]:

Provided further that the independent director shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation as per the Companies Act, 1994.

1(3)

Qualification of Independent Director: -

1G3)(a)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity
who is able to ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory
requirements and corporate laws and can make meaningful contribution to
the business;

1(3)(b)

Independent director shall have following qualifications:
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| Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted
L3)(b)() company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any - N/A
listed company or a member of any national or international chamber of

commerce or business association; or

Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level executive not lower than Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or
Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
1(3)(b)(ii) Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal - N/A
Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an unlisted company
| having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed
company; or

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory
body in the position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who
has at least educational background of bachelor degree in economics or
commerce or business or Law; or

1(3)(b)(iii)

. University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or
1{3)(b?(1v) Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or & Nk

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High
Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant

13)(b)(V) or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or N
Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or
Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent
qualification;
13)c) The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences N
in any field mentioned in clause (b);
1 In special cases, the above qualificalions or experiences may be relaxed
G)d) subject to prior a 1 of the Commissi = N/A
pproval of the Commission. )
1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer: -
The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director
1(4)(a) (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the company shall be v
filled by different individuals;
1(4)(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of a 3
listed company shall not hold the same position in another listed company;
1(4)(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non- J
executive directors of the company;
14)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the 5
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;
In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members
1(4)(e) may elect one of themselves from non-executive directors as Chairperson h No such event
for that particular Board’s meeting; the reason of absence of the regular occurred
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.
The Directors’ Report to Shareholders
1(5) The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or disclosures in the Directors’ Report prepared under
section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994): -
1(5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry; v
1(5)(ii) The segment-wise or product-wise performance; v
1(5)(ii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to J
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;
1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit "

Margin, where applicable;

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their
16 implications (gain or loss); g =

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement
1(5)(vi) showing amount, nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis
of transactions of all related party transactions;

= Mention in the audit
reportspage no. 27

1(5)(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights - N/A
issues and/or any other instruments; |

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes
1(5)(viii) for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPQ), Rights - N/A
Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly

165)(ix) Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements; L i

A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent

16Kz directors; v
A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of

1(5)xi) the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its v

operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

i A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been

1(5)xi) maintained; v
A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently

1(5)(xiii) applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting \"

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have J

LEK = been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed:
1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has J

been effectively implemented and monitored;

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive
1(5)(xvi) actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either - N/A
directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress;
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1(5)(xvii)

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer company is not
considered to be a going concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall
be disclosed;

1(5)(xviii)

An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating
results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof
shall be explained;

1(5)(xixj

A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5
(five) vears shall be summarized;

1(5)(xx)

An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared
dividend (cash or stock) for the year;

Due to Loss
Company has not
declared dividend

L(5)(xxi)

Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has
been or shall be declared as interim dividend;

N/A

1(5)(xxii)

The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance
by each director;

1(5)(xxiii)

A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise details were stated

below) held by: -

1(5)(xxiii)(a)

Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties
(name-wise details);

N/A

1(5)(xxiii)(b)

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and
minor children (name-wise details);

No Share held

1(5)(xxiii)(c)

Executives; and

N/A

1(5)(xxiii)(d)

Shareholders holding ten pcrcém (10%) or more voting interest in the

_company (name-wise details);

N/A

1(5)(xxiv)

In case of the appointment or reappoiniment of a director, a disclosure on the following

information to the shareholders: -

1(S)(xxiv)(a)

a brief resume of the director;

B,

1{5)(xxiv)(b)

nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas; and

'\‘1[

1(5)(xxiv){c)

names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and
the membership of committees of the Board;

[
+/

1(5)(xxv)

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the company’s position and

operations along with a brief disc of changes in the financial sta

g others, focusing

0

n:

¢+
nts, a

1(5)(xxv)(a)

accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

Nl

1(3)(axv)(b)

changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing
the effect on financial performance or results and financial position as well
as cash flows in absolute figure for such changes;

N/A

L(5)(exv)(c)

comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial
performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows for
current financial year with immediate preceding five years explaining
reasons thereof;

L(5)(xxv)(d)

compare such financial performance or results and financial position as
well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(3)(xxv)(e)

briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the
globe;

1(5)eoxvi(®)

risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining
such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1(S)(xxv)(g)

future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance
and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall
be explained to the shareholders in the next AGM;

1(5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as
required under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A;
and

1(5)(xxvii)

The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this
Code as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of
the meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this
Code.

1(7)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board

bers and Chief Executive Officer

1(7)@)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson of the Board, other board members
and Chief Executive Officer of the company;

\l'

1(7)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the
website of the company including, among others, prudent conduct and
behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules
and regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and independency.

Code of Conduct are

in Website as per

BSEC Requirement

2

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company: -

2(a)

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding
company shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of the
subsidiary company;

N/A

2(b)

At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company
shall be a director on the Board of the subsidiary company;

N/A

2(c)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be
placed for review at the following Board meeting of the holding company;

N/A
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2(d)

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall
state that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

N/A

2(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the
financial statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary
company.

N/A

3

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Int

Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).

ernal Audit and

3()

Appointment

3(1)(@)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer
(CFQO) and a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);

3(1)(b)

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ), Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head
of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different
individuals;

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold
any executive position in any other company at the same time;

3(1)d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties
of the CFQ, the HIAC and the CS;

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEQ, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their
position without approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination
to the Commission and stock exchange(s).

3(2)

RequirementtoattendBoardofDirectors’Meetings

The MD or CEQ, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the
meetings of the Board:

Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend such part of a
meeting of the Board which involves consideration of an agenda item
relating to their personal matters.

33)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) an

d Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

3(3)()

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the year and that to the best of

their knowledge and belief:

33)@0

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; and

v

3(3)(a)(iD)

these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and
applicable laws;

33)(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct
for the company’s Board or its members;

N/A

3(3)©

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

VI

Annexure-A

4

BoardofDirectors’Committee: -
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least

following sub-committees:

4(1)

Audit Committee; and

4(ii)

| Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

N

5

Audit Committee. -

5(1)

ResponsibilitytotheBoardofDirectors.

5(1)(a)

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the
Board;

5(1)(b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial
staternents reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business;

5((c)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the
Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

52)

ConstitutionoftheAuditCommittee

5(2)()

The Audit Committee shall be composedrof at least 3 (three) members;

5(2)(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be
non-executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the
Board and shall include at least 1 (one) independent director;

5(2)(¢)

All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate™ and at
least 1 (one) member shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10 (ten) years of such experience;

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is
any circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold
office before expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of
the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3
(three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill
up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date
of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the performance of
work of the Audit Committee;

S(2)(e)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

5(2)(H

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without
at least 1 (one) independent director.

5(3)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5(3)(a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent
director;
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5(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular
meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as
required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the
regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

No such event
occurred

5(3)(c)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any
other member from the Audit Committee shall be selected to be present in
the annual general meeting (AGM) and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of
the AGM.

Will be attending in
upcoming AGM

5(4)

Meeting of the Audit Committee

5(4)(a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial
year: Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting
may be convened at the request of any one of the members of the
Committee;

5(4)(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two-third of the members of the Audit
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent
director is a must.

5(5)

Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall: -

S(5)a)

Oversee the financial reporting process;

5(5)(b)

monitor choice of accounting policies and principles:

5(5)(e)

monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

3(5)(d)

oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

5(3)(e)

hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the
annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or
adoption;

5(5)(D)

review along with the management, the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

3(5)(g)

review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval;

5(5)(h)

review the adequacy of internal audit function;

5(5)(1)

review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in
the Annual Report;

5(5)(G)

review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the
management;

5(5)(k)

review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued
by statutory auditors;

5(5)(D

oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude,
level of expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and
evaluate the performance of external auditors; and

5(5)(m)

oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO)
or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized
as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus
approved by the Commission:

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about
the uses or applications of the proceeds by major category (capital
expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.), on a
quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results:

Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall prepare a
statement of the proceeds utilized for the purposes other than those stated
in the offer document or prospectus for publication in the Annual Report
along with the comments of the Audit Committee.

N/A

5(6)

Reporting of the Audit C ittee

5(6)(a)

Reporting to the Board of Directors

S(6)(@)([)

The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board.

VI

5(6)(a)(ii)

S(6)(a)(ii)(a)

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the follo
report on conflicts of interests;

wing findings, if any: -

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(b)

suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in
the internal audit and compliance process or in the financial statements;

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(c)

suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including
securities related laws, rules and regulations; and

N/A

S(6)(a)(ii)(d)

any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be
disclosed to the Board immediately;

N/A

3(6)(b)

Reporting to the Authorities

| If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which

has material impact on the financial condition and results of operation and
has discussed with the Board and the management that any rectification is
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has
been unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding
to the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three
times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first
reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

N/A
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5(N

Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any
report made to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii} above during the N
year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and
disclosed in the annual report of the issuer company.

6

Nomination and Remuneration Cc ittee (NRC).-

6(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

6(1)(@)

The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee v
(NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board;

6(1)(b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria
or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences
and independence of directors and top-level executive as well as a policy ~
for formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level
executive;

6(1)(c)

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in J
writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

6(2)

Constitution of the NRC

6(2)(2)

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an /
independent director;

6(2)(b)

All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors; N

6(2)(c)

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the
Board:

6(2)(d)

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the
Committee;

Mo such event
occurred

6(2)(e)

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member
of the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the
vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy
in the Committee:

No such event
occurred

6(2)(DH

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external
expert and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be
non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion -
from such external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or
valuable for the Committee;

No such event
occurred

6(2)(2)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; N

6(2)(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of N
at least an independent director;

6(2)(1)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any
remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than Y
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company.

6(3)

Chairperson of the NRC

6(3)()

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of N
the Committee, who shall be an independent director;

6(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the
reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the -
minutes;

No such event
occurred

6(3)(c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting
(AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders:

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any other member
from the NRC shall be selected to be present in the annual general meeting
(AGM) for answering the shareholder’s queries and reason for absence of
the Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.

Will be attending in
upcoming AGM

6(4)

MeetingoftheNRC

6(4)(@)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year; ~

6(4)(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon
request by any member of the NRC;

N/A

6(4)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of
either two members or two third of the members of the Committee, N
whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is must as
required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

6(4)(d)

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the
minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the v
NRC.

6(5)

Role of the NRC

6(5)(a)

NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board J
and to the shareholders;

6(5)(b)

NRC shall oversee, among othcré, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the Board:

6(5)(b)(1)

formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend a policy to

the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:

6(5)(b)(i)(@)

the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company 5 v'
successfully;

6(5)(b)(i)(b)

the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets J
appropriate performance benchmarks; and

remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between

6(5)(b)(i)(c) fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance ~
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;
6(5)(b)(i) devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, 1 o

gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

<8




6(5)(b)(iii)

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

6(5)(b)(iv)

formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent
directors and the Board;

N/A

6(5)(d)(v)

identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and
determine their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;
and

N/A

6(5)(b)(vi)

developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human
resources and training policies;

6(5)(c)

The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and
the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in
its annual report.

7

External or Statutory Auditors. -

7(1)

The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services

namely: -

of the company,

7(DA

appraisal or valuation services or faimess opinions;

7(1)(i)

financial information systems design and implementation;

7(1)(iii)

book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statements;

7(1)(iv)

broker-dealer services;

M)

actuarial services;

7(1)(vi)

internal audit services or special audit services;

T(1)(vii)

any service that the Audit Committee determines;

7(1)(vii)

audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as
required under condition No. 9(1); and

7(1)(Ex)

any other service that creates conflict of interest.

7(2)

No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share
of the company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit
assignment of that company; his or her family members also shall not hold
any shares in the said company:

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-

| law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members.

7(3)

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders” Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Maintaining a website by the Company. -

8(1)

The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the
stock exchange.

8(2)

The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing.

8(3)

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website
as required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock
exchange(s).

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance. -

9(1)

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report.

Required Certificate
has been obtained
from Vanguard
Business
Consultants&
Associates, Cost
and Management
Accountants for the
year ended 30" June
2023.

9(2)

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this
Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the
annual general meeting (AGM).

93)

The directors of the company shall sfate, in accordance with the
Annexure-C attached, in the directors’ report whether the company has
complied with these conditions or not.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders ofZeal Bangla Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023,and along with the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the yearthen ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2023, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. In note 18.00 of the financial statements regarding Long Term Loan (Secured) in respect of
SM & RFS Seed Multiplication & Research Farm Scheme, ADP Loan for BMRE, Golden
Handshake loan,amounting to Tk. 37,263,687 we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities by these ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. In note 7.00 of the financial statements and Annexure-G regarding cane growers loan
amounting to Tk. 24,571,442 were carried forward for a long period of time and the
corporation did not take any action to recover the said amount from the cane growers. There
is a significant doubt that this amount will be recovered.

2. As disclosed in note 8.00 of the financial statements, Advance Income Tax, amounting to Tk.
3,160,081 has been accumulated from the financial year 1991-1992 to 1994-1995 which has
been unadjusted till 30 June 2023.

3. In note 23.00 of the financial statements, it is disclosed that a provision for doubtful
advances amounting to Tk. 783,879 has been carried forward for a long period of time.
According to IFRS 09, there is a requirement to measure and recognize lifetime Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) for financial assets exhibiting significantly increased credit loss.

4. As per retirement policy company requirement amounting to Tk. 283,147,212 as per
financial statement gratuity payable amounting to Tk. 130,423,749 as on 30 June 2023. there
is difference between amounting to Tk. 152,723,463 which is short fall amount gratuity
payable.

5. In reference to note 25.00, the company’s sales revenue from Molasses sales has been
including net of TAX amounting Tk. 59,709,543 instead of inclusive of TAX resalting in on
understatement of revenue.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

The Company has been incurring loss for a long time. Its accumulated loss was Tk. - 6,121,187,599
for the year ended 30 June, 2023 and, as of that date the Company’s total liabilities exceeded its total
assets by Tk. -5,952,446,902 alsothe bank loan (agriculture) and short-term loan in the amounts of
Tk. 2,342,582,004 and 59,554,097 were carried forward for a considerable amount of time, as
indicated in notes 17 and 24 of the financial statements. It has come to our attention that the
business reported missing loan payments for the fiscal years 2017, 2018, 2019, and 2020. This big
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loan default raises serious questions about the company's financial stability and liquidity. These
circumstances or occurrences suggest that there is considerable uncertainty that could seriously
impair the company's capacity to continue operating in the foreseeable future and it also seems that
the company is unable to run its operation without government support.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Revenue Recognition

The company reported total sales of Tk. 345,665,043 for the year ended 30 June 2023. Sales
increased by Tk. 34,214,119 which shows 11% higher revenue compared to last year. Moreover, the
disclosed Molasses sales are net of source tax, therefore the calculation of tax is important during the
audit. We focus on the risk of material misstatement in the recognition of revenue, as a result of both
fraud and error, because revenue is material and is an important determinant of the company’s
profitability, which has a consequent impact on its share price performance.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing on the following:

e Calculation of Gross Sugar and Molasses sales, as well as source tax on these items to derive the
Net Sales amount;
Segregation of duties in invoice creation and modification; and
Timing of revenue recognition.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue recognition comprises the following:

e Obtaining supporting documentation for sales transactions recorded at the yearend date to
determine whether revenue was recognized in the current period;

e (Critically assessing manual journals posted to revenue to identify unusual or irregular items; and

Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures against relevant accounting

standards.

Valuation of Inventories

The company had inventories of Tk. 135,209,608 at 30 June 2023, held in factory premises

andWarehouse. Stock of Spares, Stores in Transit, Fertilizer and Insecticides, Molasses Inventory

value are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.Sugar Inventory value is measured

by company own policy which instruction by the Ministry of Industries (ref. No-

36.00.0000.064.07.015.08-117).As a result, the Directors apply judgment in determining the

appropriate values for value in use and working progress. The provision of Work in Progress is

calculated within the company’s accounting systems using an automated process. Where local

systems require manual interfaces and inputs, there is a risk that inappropriate management

override and/or error may occur.

We challenged the appropriateness of management’s assumptions applied in calculating the value of

the inventory provisions by:

e Evaluating the design and implementation of key inventory controls operating across the
company, including those at a sample of warehouses.

e Comparing the net realizable value, obtained through a detailed review of sales subsequent to
the year-end, to the cost price of a sample of inventories and comparison to the associated
provision to assess whether inventory provisions are complete; and

e Challenging the completeness of inventory provisions through assessing actual and forecast sales
of inventory to assess whether provisions for slow-moving/obsolete stock are valid and
complete, if any

Other Information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have not been provided the Director’s report and
other information contained within the annual report except the financial statements to the date of
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our auditor’s report. We expect to obtain the remaining reports of the Annual report the date of our
auditor’s report. Management is responsible for the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of
the Companyand for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. The Company Act, 1994 and the Bangladesh Bank guidelines require the managements to
ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management functions of the Company. The
management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud internal
controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

In preparing the Financial Statement, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilityto
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Wb




Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Securities & Exchange Rules 2020, the Companies Act, 1994, we also report

that:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Companyso far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

the company’sstatement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in
agreement with the books of account and returns; and

the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the company’s business for the year;

-ﬂ%%

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA

Partner

ICAB Enrollment No. 105
Mahfel Huq & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: P-46323

DVC:

Dhaka, 290ctober 2023
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2023

PARTICULARS

Notes

Amount in Taka

ASSETS:

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment

Current Assets

Inventories

Trade & Other Receiveables

Loans & Advances

Advance Income Tax

Deposits

Current Account with BSFIC Enterprises
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES:
Shareholder's Equity :
Share Capital

Capital Reserve

Equity Fund
Government Grants
Retained Earnings

Non-current Liabilities
Bank loan (Agriculture)
Long Term Loan (Secured)
Deferred l'ax Liability

Current Liabilities

Creditors

Current Account with BSFIC

Current Account with BSFIC Enterprises
Provision for Leave Pay & Gratuity
Provision for Doubtful Advances

Short Term Loan

Total Liabilities

4.00

5.00
6.00
7.00
8.00
9.00
10.00

11.00

12.00
13.00
14.00
15.00
16.00

17.00
18.00
Annexure - 1

19.00
20.00
21.00
22.00
23.00
24.00

(Payable)

Total Shareholder's Equity & Liabilities:

Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share

0/

Company Secretary

33.00

Managing Director

Friday, June 30, 2023|| Thursday, june 30, 2022
140,818,910 124,107,733

| 140,818,910 || 124,107,733
313,454,775 270,779,573
135,209,608 183,421,443
998,075 121,737
62,031,984 45,873,198
3,160,081 5,311,981
856,311 . 856,311
25,224,303 3,471,675
85,974,413 31,723,228
454,273,685 394,887,306

(5,952,446,902)

(5,434,227,879)

60,000,000 60,000,000
1,815,056 | 1,815,056
90,725,636 90,725,636
16,200,005 5
(6,121,187,599 (5,586,768,576)

3,398,711,661

2,966,755,304

2,342,582,004

2,167,042,356

1,042,071,025 786,019,690
14,058,632 13,693,258
3,008,008,926 2,862,359,882
190,835,811 204,240,453 |
2,502,875,525 2,426,807,868
18,475,211 21,889,318
235,484,404 149,084,268
783,879 783,879
59,554,097 59,554,097

6,406,720,587

5,829,115,186

454,273,685

394,887,306

The annexed notes form an integral part oftheseﬁngncfal statements

(992.07) (905.70)
Direcwor Director

Signed as per our report of same date —/W&_'“ a

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA

Dhaka: 29 October, 2023

Yo

Partner

ICAB Enrollment No. 105

Mahfel Huq & Co.

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 23011080105AS8231361




ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka

PARTICLLARS Notes Friday, June 30, 2023 | Thursday, June 30, 2022
Sales 25.00 345,665,043 311,450,924
Less: Cost of Goods Sold 26.00 (540,767,343) (481,683,597)
Gross Profit / Loss for the Year (195,102,300) (170,232,673)
Less: Operating Expenses
Salaries and Allowances ( Adm ) Annexure-B 70,967,131 67,702,439
Administrative Expenses 27.00 10,308,389 | 8,501,703
Head Office Overhead 28.00 - 4,324,613
Selling and Distribution Expenses 29.00 1,451,641 1,271,971
Additional provision for lump Grant & Gratuity(BSFIC) - 38,488,014
Audit Fees 100,000 100,000
Interest on Loan 30.00 256,338,640 238,619,990
Depreciation Annexure-C 468,303 467,198

339,634,104 359,475,928

Operating Profit / Loss for the Year (534,736,404) (529,708,601)
Add : Income from Experimental Farm (402,463) 264,482
Add : Miscellaneous Income 31.00 4,076,397 3,230,947
Less : Worker's Profit Participation Fund - -
Profit Before Tax (531,062,470)  (526,213,172)
Less:Current Tax 32.00 2,991,180 2,655,177
Less: Deffered Tax Expense 365,374 763,820
Net profit/Loss for the Year (534,419,024) (529,632,169)
Other comprehensive income 7 .
Total comprehensive income for the year (534,419,024) (529,632,169)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 34.00 (89.07) (88.27)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

SV

Director

Company Secretary Mana;ging Director

Director

R/

Signed as per our report of same date

Dhaka: 29 October, 2023

03

et

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA

Partner

ICAB Enrollment No. 105

Mahfel Huq & Co.

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 23011080105A8231361
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2023

PARTICULARS

Amount in Taka

Friday, June 30, 2023 || Thursday, June 30, 2022

. Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers and others

Cash paid to suppliers and other exp.

Cash paid for Bank Interest

Income tax paid

Net Cash (Used In) /Generated By Operating Activities

. Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Loan to cane growers, net

Acquisition of Fixed Assets

Net Cash (Used In)/Generated By Investing Activities

. Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Long Term Loan Net

Short Term Loan

Grant received

Current Account with BSFIC, net

Net Cash (Used In)/Generated By Financing Activities

. Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents
Exchange Gain or Loss
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents

. Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)

348,865,102
(775,900,105)

331,094,342
(691,839,717)

(427,035,003)

(360,745,375)

(17,155,090)
(25,417,363)

(10,999,719)
(11,518,025)

(42,572,453) (22,517,744)
431,590,983 294,275,347
- 40,000
16,200,000
76,067,657 81,198,238
523,858,640 375,513,584 |
|
54,251,184 (7,749,535)
31,723,229 39,472,763
85,974,413 31,723,228
(71.17)]| (60.12)]

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

' \
Director Director

s

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA
Partner

ICAB Enrollment No. 105
Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DVC: 23011080105AS8231361

Company Secretary Managing pirector




ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023

1.00 LEGAL STATUS AND ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

2.00 Domicile, Legal Form and Country of incorporation:
Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd. was incorporated on May 16, with RJSC Reg. Number C- 1913 in the
year 1963 as a public Limited company Act 1913. The Company is Listed with the Dhaka Stock

Exchange (DSE),

3.00 Nature of the Business Activities:
The main activities of the company during the year under audit were to produce sugar from
sugarcane and molasses as by-product. Both sugar and molasses were sold out in the local market

3.01

to growers, employees, Ministry of defense and others.

i) Address of Registered Office and Mills:

The registered office of the Company and the mill is located at Dewanganj, Jamalpur.

ii) Number of Employees:
The total number of employees at the end of the year is 858. Details are as ur

Particulars Number of Employees
Permanent ] 309
Seasonal 317
Master role 7 232
Total 858

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by Financial Reporting

Council. The compliance status of these IAS's & IFRS's are as follows:

Name of The Standards |  Compliance |
IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements : Complied
IAS 2: Inventories Complied
IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows Complied
IAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied
IAS 10: Events after the Reporting Period Complied
IAS 12: Income Taxes Complied
IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment Complied
1AS 19: Employee Benefits Complied
IAS. 20: Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Complied
Assistance
IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Not applicable
IAS 23: Borrowing Costs Complied
IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures Complied
IAS 26: Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans Complied
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023

7 Name of The Standards Consltl;léla::ce
IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements Not applicable
IAS 28: Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures Not applicable
IAS 29: Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics Not applicable
IAS 32: Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation Not applicable
IAS 33: Earnings Per Share Complied
IAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting Not applicable
IAS 36: Impairment of Assets Complied
IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets Not applicable
IAS 38: Intangible Assets Complied
IAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement Not applicable
IAS 40: Investment Property Not applicable
IAS 41: Agriculture Not applicable
IFRS 1: First time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards Not applicable
IFRS 2: Share based Payment Not applicable
IFRS 3: Business Combinations Not applicable
IFRS 4: Insurance Contracts Not applicable
IFRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations Not applicable
IFRS 6: Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources Not applicable
IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied
IFRS 8: Operating Segments Not applicable
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments Complied
IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements Not applicable
IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements Not applicable
IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Complied
IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement Complied
IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts Not applicable
IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied
IFRS 16: Leases Not applicable

Compliance with other regulatory requirements

The Company complied with the requirements of following laws and regulations from various

government bodies:

i) The Companies Act,1994;

ii) The Income Tax and amendment thereon;

iii) The Income Tax Rules,1984;

iv) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act 2012;
v) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rule 2016;
vi) The Stamp Act, 1899;

vii) The Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 and amended in 2015, The Bangladesh Labour Rules, 2010:

viii) The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Ordinance,1969;
ix) The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules,1987;

x) Listing Regulations of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges;
xi) The Income Tax Act, 2023;
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023

3.02 SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES-DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS-1 "

3.03 Basis of Measurement used in preparing the financial Ptinciple:
The element of financial statements have been measured on "Historical Cost" convention and on
accrual basis in accordence the company Act. 1994, the securities And exchange rules 1987,
listing regulation of DSE and International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) and BSEC guidelines.

3.04 Recognition of property, Plant and equipment and Depreciation-1AS-
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in
accordence with I1AS-16 "Property, Plant and Equipment ". Cost of acquisition or construction and
capitalization as per requirements of companies Act. 1994. Expenditure for repaires and
maintenance are recognized as expenses; major , replacements, renewals and betterments are
capitalized.

3.05 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balance and deposits with financial institutions
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

3.06 Depreciation:
No depreciation is charged on Land and Land development. Depreciation is commenced when the
asset is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended. Property plant and equipment of the company are depreciated using reducing balance
method. Depreciation is expressed in terms of percentage of cost of the related assets. The
depreciation rates per annum applicable to different categories of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Asset category Rate of reciation
01. Building on Freehold Land 5%

02. 1 No. Steel Tank ( BMRE ) 3%

03. Plant & Machinery 10%

04. Office Equipment and Electrical Installation 10%

05. Vehicles & Transport 5%

06. Furniture , Fixture & Office Equipment 10%

07. Sundry Assets 10%

3.07 Inventories -1AS-2:
Inventories comprise raw materials, work in process, finished goods, packing materials, stores
and spares, Molasses and goods in transit, The valuation of stores & spares has been made at
Weighted avarage cost price. Store in transit has been valued at actual price. The value of work in
process has been calculated at 100% of raw material. The valuation of finished suger has been
made at net realizable value and molasses has been made by the Ministry of Industries.



3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023

Trade Debtors:
These are are carried at original invoice amount. This is considered good and collectible.

Creditors and Accrued Expenses:
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed by the supplier.

Taxation:

Income Tax

Tax provision has been made during the period on the basis of Turnover as per Section 82C Para
4 of Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 since the company sustained loss.

Deferred Tax

The company has recognized deferred tax using balance sheet method in compliance with the
provisions of IAS 12: Income Taxes. The company’s policy of recognition of deferred tax assets/
liabilities is based on temporary differences (taxable or deductible) between the carrying amount
(Book value) of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and its tax base, and
accordingly, deferred tax income/expenses has been considered to determine net profit after tax.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available, against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing costs as charged as expenses under the head interest on loan (1AS-23)

Revenue Recognition:

Sales are recognized when products are deliverd. Sales comprise sales of suger and molasses and
sales are shown in the financial statements of the company after excluding VAT and other duty
(IFRS-15)

Cash Flow Statement:

Statement of cash flows is prepared under direct method in accordance with IAS-7 "Statement of
Cash Flows" as required by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

3.14 Accounting of Sugar Cane Wastage:

Tl PN

Sales proceeds of Bagasse's and Mud are included in the miscellanious income.
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023

3.15 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
3.16 Responsibilities for preparation and presentation of Financial

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

The Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements
under Section 183 of the Companies Act. 1994 and as per the provisions of "The Framework for
the preparation of Financial Statements" issued by the International Accounting Standards(IAS).

Components of Financial Statements:
According to the International Accounting Standard (IAS 1) " Presentatation of Financial
Statements" the complete set of Financial Statements included the following components:

i) Statements of Financial Position as at June 30, 2023.

ii) Statements of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive Income for the period ended June
30, 2023.

iii) Statements of Changes in Equity for the period ended June 30, 2023.

iv) Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended June 30, 2023.

v) Accounting policies and Explanatory notes as at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Reporting Period:
Financial Statements of the company covers one Financial year from 01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.

Reporting Currency and Level of precision:

The figure in the financial Statements represent Bangladesh Taka (BDT.) which have been
rounded off the nearest taka except where indicates otherwise.

Comparative Information:

Previous year's figure has been rearranged in line with current year's figures for fair presentation
of Financial Statements.

Contingent Liabilities:

All known liabilities as of balance sheet date have been provided for and included in the financial
statements. There are no contingent liabilities of Zeal Bangla Sugar Mills Ltd.

Post Balance Sheet
Events:
There were no material events occuring after the balance sheet date.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company's
position at the reporting date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are reflected in the financial statements. Amounts recognised in the financial
statements are adjusted for events after the reporting period that provide evidence of conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period. No adjustment is given in the financial statements
for events after the reporting period that are indicative of conditions that arose after the
reporting period. Material non-adjusting events are disclosed in the financial statements.
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka
PARTICULARS Nofes 30June2023 || 30 June 2022
4.00 Property, Plant & Equipment
A. Cost/revaluation
Opening balance 340,218,552 328,700,527
Addition during the year 25,417,363 11,518,025
Disposal/adjustment during the year - -
Total 365,635,915 340,218,552
B. Accumulated Depreciation.
Opening balance 216,110,819 207,425,176
Depreciation for the year 8,706,186 8,685,643
Disposal/adjustment during the year - -
Total 224,817,005 216,110,819
Net book value (A-B) 140,818,910 124,107,733
5.00 Inventories
Stock of Spares 65,036,229 54,193,607
Stores in Transit 6,330,387 5,831,885
Fertilizer and Insecticides 25,491,747 5,558,131
96,858,363 65,583,623
Finised Goods:
Sugar 32.13M.Ton @ tk100,000 & .144M.Ton @200,000 3,241,800 51,009,500
Molasses 985.69M Ton@TK 35,007 34,506,050 66,531,168
37,747,850 117,540,668
Work in Process 603,395 297,152
Total 135,209,608 183,421,443
6.00 Trade and Other Receiveables
Trade Debtors 6.01 876,338
Sundry Debtors, Douthful of recovery 6.02 121,737 121,737
Mr. Mainul Hossain, Advocate - .
Total 998,075 121,737
6.01 Trade Debtors
Sugar:
Bsfic 801,338
Ration shop 75,000
876,338 -
6.02 Sundry Debtors Doubtful of Recovery
1. Mr. Shah Alam, Ex-CDA 61,231 61,231
2. Mr. Jamat Ali, Ex-CDA 60,506 60,506
121,737 121,737
7.00 Loans & Advance
Advance against Motor-cycle & Bi-cycle 438,444 631,665
Advance against Salary 1,103,679 1,861,051
Advance against Expenses 323,378 313,936
Cane Grower's Loan (Annexure-G) 60,145,466 42,990,376
Advance against TA/DA 21,017 76,170
Advance to cane Department - )
Total 62,031,984 45,873,198
8.00 Advance Income Tax
Financial Year : )
1991-1992 440,882 440,882
1992-1993 2,151,900
1993-1994 1,944,224 1,944,224
1994-1995 774,975 774,975
Total 3,160,081 5,311,981

Tax Deducted at source from the sales of sugar supplied to Ministry of Defense of GOB 5% on total sales bill.
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 june 2023

Amount in Taka
PARTICULARS b v 30June2023 || 30 June 2022
9.00 Deposits

Opening Balance 9.01 856,311 856,311

Add: Addition during the Year 2 =

Less : Adjustment made during the year 856,311 856,311

Closing Balance 856,311 856,311

9,01 Others

National Board of Revenue 677,811 677,811

Bangladesh Power Development Board 140,500 140,500

Bangladesh Oxygen Limited 37,000 37,000

Central Excise Land Custom 1,000 1,000 |

Total 856,311 856,311

Grand Total 856,311 856,311
10.00 Current account with BSFIC Ent.( Receivable)

Name of Enterprise

Renwick Jagswer & Co. 4,764,368 3,417,139

Shipping Office ,Ctg 54,536

Mobarakgonj Sugar Mills Ltd 20,004

Kushtia Sugar Mills Ltd 948,430

Carew & Company Ltd 13,265,138

Setabgonj Sugar Mills Limited, 6,226,363

Total 25,224,303 3,471,675
11.00 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 7,785 | 274

Cash at Banks 11.01 85,966,628 31,722,954

Total 85,974,413 31,723,228
11.01 Cash at Banks

STD A/C # 1, Sonali Bank, D.S. Mills Branch 6,741,975 3,738,974

Sales Collection A/C # P-2/5 with Sonali Bank, D.S. Mills Branch 35,771,357 8,095,772

Janata Bank, Dilkusha, Dhaka A/C # 513 630,388 619,802

Sonali Bank, Shilpa Bhaban Branch, Dhaka A/C # 662 1,475 1,475

Sonali Bank, Shilpa Bhaban Branch, Dhaka A/C # 338 840,073 736,986

Rupali bank ,Melandah Branch,Jamalpur 41,586,210 18,529,945

Sonali Bank,A/C# 719 D.S. Mills Branch 395,150 ||

Total

12.00 Share Capital

12.01

Authorized Capital:
50,000,000 Ordinary Share of TK 10 each

80

—85966,628 ___ 31722954

60,000,000

60,000,000

500,000,000

500,000,000




ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka
PARCEICULARS Notes 30 June 2023 || 30 June 2022
12.02 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital: 60,000,000 60,000,000
|Name of Subscriber }]ﬂo of Share | [% |
BSFIC 3,060,000 51% 30,600,000 30,600,000
General Public 2,940,000 49% 29,400,000 29,400,000
6,000,000 100% 60,000,000 60,000,000
Classification of shares by number of shares held
" Number of Total holding
Level of Share Holding Shareholders _ Number of Shares (%)
Less than 500 shares 4,664 416,953 7%
501 to 5,000 shares ] 527 819,948 14%
5,001 to 10,000 shares 39 268,415 4%
10,001 to 20,000 shares 14 212,522 4%
20,001 to 30,000 shares 8 206,056 3%
30,001 to 40,000 shares 3 103,364 2%
40,001 to 50,000 shares 1 45,243 1%
50,001 to 100,000 shares ] 1 59,000 1%
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 3 808,499 13%
Over 1,000,000 shares 3,060,000 51%
Total 5,261 6,000,000 100%
13.00 Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 1,815,056 1,815,056
Add : Addition during the Year - -
1,815,056 1,815,056
Less : Adjustment made during the Year - -
Closing Balance 1,815,056 1,815,056
14.00 Equity Fund -
Received from Government for SM & RFS 2,070,996 2,070,996
Quasi Equity 14.01 88,207,140 88,207,140
Integrated Cane Development Program 447,500 447,500
90,725,636 90,725,636

14.01 Quasi-Equity Loan (Interest Free)
The above amount represents the net valuation gain made by the company through
calculating net worth by a professional firm M/S Basu Banarjee & Co Chartered Accountants
on 24th March 1988

calculation is gi elow :
value w [ Original Cost | Revalued Value

Total Assets 171,716,682 290,864,262
Less : Total Liabilities 144,672,950 142,657,522
Net Worth_ — 27043732 __148.206,740
The above net worth constituted as follows :
Share Capital 60,000,000
Quasi- Equity Loan ( Revaluation Surplus ) 88,207,140

148,207,140
It is noted that the net valuation gain has been account under the
head of Quasi - Equity Loan ( Interest Free )

15.00 Grants
The above amount was received from Government
Opening Balance 5 5
Add : Addition during the Year 16,200,000 -
16,200,005 5

Less : Adjustment made during the Year - -
Closing Balance 16,200,005 5

16.00 Retained Earnings

Opening Balance (5.586,768,576)

Total comprehensive income for the year (534,419,024)

(5,057,136,407)
(529,632,169)

Total (6,121,187,599)

(5,586,768,576)
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka

Not
PARLIRIAkS otes 30 June 2023 || 30 June 2022
17.00 Bank Loan (Agriculture)
Sonali Bank, D.S.Mills Branch, Agricultural Loan A/.C# 673000010 343,250,558 | 317,516,964
Sonali Bank, D.S.Mills Branch, Agricultural Loan A/.C# 673000011 446,433,787 412,978,421
Sonali Bank, D.S. Milis Branch , Agricultural Loan A/C # 673000012 471,267,425 435,953,621
Sonali Bank, D.S. Mills Branch , Agricultural Loan A/C # 462000006 538,903,248 498,527,882
Sonali Bank, D.S. Mills Branch , Agricultural Loan A/C # 462000007 542,726,986 | 502,065,468
Total 2,342,582,004 2,167,042,356
18.00 Long Term Loan (Secured)
SM & RFS ( Seed
Multiplication & Research 566,470 566,470
Farm Scheme)
Sonali Bank Cash Credit A/C. 213 ( Block) 18.01 150,494,185 150,494,185
ADP loan for BMRE
(Balancing , Modernization, 18.02 6,860,418 6,533,731
Replacement) and Extension
of Mills
Golden Handshake loan
received from Bangladesh 18.03 29,836,799 28,147,924
Govt.
Operating loan (Received From Govt) 18.04 854,313,153 || 600,277,380
Total 1,042,071,025 - 786,019,690
18.01 Sonali Bank Cash Credit A/c No-213
Balance as on 1st July 2022 150,494,185 150,454,185
Add. Loan received from Bank - -
Add: Interest Charged during the year 40,000
150,494,185 150,494,185
Less : Repayment made during the year = -
Balance as on 30 June 2023 150,494,185 150,494,185
18.02 ADP loan for BMRE (Balancing , Modernization, Replacement) and Extension of Mills
Balance as on 1st July 2022 6,533,731 6,222,601
Add: Interest Charged during the year 326,687 311,130
6,860,418 6,533,731
Less : Repayment made during the year - -
Balance as on 30 June 2023 6,860,418 6,533,731
18.03 Golden Handshake loan received from Bangladesh Govt.
Balance as on 1st July 2022 28,147,924 26,807,547
Add: Interest Charged during the year 1,688,875 1,340,377
29,836,799 28,147,924
Less : Repayment made during the year - -
Balance as on 30 June 2023 29,836,799 28,147,924
18.04 Operating Loan (Received From Govt)
Balance as on 1st July 2022 600,277,380 474,105,445
Add: Addition during the year 224,021,904 100,000,000 ‘
Add: Interest Charged during the year 30,013,869 26,171,935
854,313,153 600,277,380
Less : Repayment made during the year - -
Balance as on 30 June 2023 854,313,153 600,277,380
19.00 Creditors
Creditos for Good Supplied 19.01 33,589,929 35,582,826
Creditors for Expenses 19.02 17,698,756 16,859,478
Creditors for other finance 19.03 139,547,127 151,798,149
Total 190,835,811 204,240,453
19.01 Creditors for Goods Supplied
Suppliers Current A/C 33,589,929 34,570,884
Advance received against sugar sales 300,396
Advance received against molasses sales 711,546
Total 33,589,929 35,582,826
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka
EARLICHLARS Notes 30 June 2023 || 30 June 2022
19.02 Creditors for Expenses
Provision for Tax 19.02.01 17,598,756 16,759,478
Audit fees 100,000 100,000
17,698,756 16,859,478
19.02.01 Provision for Tax
Opening balance 16,759,476 14,104,301
Add: during the year 2,991,180 2,655,177
Less: adjustment 2,151,900 -
Total 17,598,756 16,759,478
19.03 Creditors for other finance:Tk.
Sundry Creditors 3,581,058 3,073,544
Unpaid cane price 872,205 811,517
Welfare fund (70,075) 512,795
Supplier Vat 374,079 333,130
Staff Security 23,033 23,033
Security deposit (contructors Suppliers Dealer) 4,970,833 4,765,094
Provident Fund (Permanent) 21,400,925 51,591,524
Provident Fund (Seasonal) 11,600,847 11,535,695
Provident Fund (Head Offce) 1,593,953 2,797,346
Provident Fund (Other Mills) 793,520 693,561
Education Cess 1,050,527 1,052,999
Suppliers Income Tax 230,322 130,549
Salary Income Tax 192,606 267,968
Revenue Stamp 81,142 169,452
Interest Payable 87,769,824 58,518,047
Salary Payable 4,842,794 10,702,943
Provision for Doubtful Debts 121,737 121,737
Source VAT (Molasses) 5,244 117,000
Source Tax(Molasses) 100,938 167,592
STP Subsidy A/C - 4,177,500
VAT(Molasses) 11615 235,123
Total 139,547,127 151,798,149
20.00 Current Account With BSFIC
Balance as on 1st July 2022 2,426,807,868 2,345,609,630
Add. Addition during the year 369,384,374 325,588,384
2,796,192,242 2,671,198,014
Less: Adjustment during the year 293,316,717 244,390,146
Balance as on 30 June 2023 - 2.502,875,525 2,426,807,868
21.00 Current account with BSFIC Enterprise (Payable)
Joypurhat Sugar Mills Ltd 6,240,259 6,664,633
Setabgonj Sugar Mills Ltd - 1,146,327
Panchagar Sugar Mills Ltd 789,649 656,564
Rangpur Sugar Mills Ltd 5,757,613 6,891,655
Pabna Sugar Mills Ltd 450,052 1,192,083
Thakurgoan Sugar Mills Ltd 183,051 152,968
Natore Sugar Mills Ltd 840,907 165,756
North Bengal Sugar Mills Ltd. 1,762,899 1,854,860
Faridpur Sugar Mills Ltd., -
Shampur Sugar Mills Ltd 894,501 1,032,208
Carew & Company Ltd 191,436
Rajshahi Sugar Mills Ltd 1,556,280 1,556,280
Kustia Sugar Mills Ltd 384,548
Total 18,475,211 21,889,318
22.00 Provision of Leave Pay of Gratuity:Tk.
Balance as on 1st July 2022 149,084,268 76,882,133
Add. Provision for the year @ 30% of Basic Pay 118,706,331 93,557,055
267,790,599 170,439,188
Less: Payment/Adjustment made during the year 32,306,195 21,354,920
Balance as on 30 June 2023 235,484,404 149,084,268
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka

BARTICULANS i 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
23.00 Provision for Doubtful Advances 783,879 783,879
24.00 Short Term Loan
Cash Credit-246 59,554,097 59,554,097
59,554,097 59,554,097
Balance as on 1st July 2022 59,554,097 59,514,097
Add: Loan Received from Bank - -
Add:Interest and Charges during the year 2 40,000
59,554,097 59,554,097
Less: Repayment made during the year - -
Balance as on 30 June 2023 59,554,097 59,554,097
25.00 Sales
Quantity in Metric Ton
1. Sugar 2978.016 285,955,500 288,398,636
2.Molasses 2406.392 25.01 59,709,543 23,052,288
Total 345,665,043 311,450,924
25.01 Molasses
Gross Sales 79,115,148 30,544,281
Less : Vat @ 15% & VDS @7.5% 13,434,649 5,186,765
Less: IT @ 10% 5,970,956 || 2,305,228
19,405,605 7,491,993
Total 59,709,543 23,052,288
26.00 Cost of Goods Sold
Stock as on 1st July 2022
Sugar 658.00M.Ton @ tk 74,000 & 29.68M.Ton@75,000 &.610M.Ton@15000( 51,009,500 140,783,790
Molasses 2057.06M.ton @ tk 32,343 66,531,168 51,385,952
117,540,668 192,169,742
Add: Cost of Production 26.01 460,974,525 407,054,523
578,515,193 599,224,265
Less : Stock as on 30 June'2023
Sugar 32.13M.Ton @ tk100,000 & .144M.Ton @200,000 3,241,800 51,009,500
Molasses 985.69M Ton@TK 35,007 34,506,050 66,531,168
37,747,850 117,540,668
540,767,343 481,683,597
26.01 Cost of Production
Opening Work in Process 297,152 512,436
Add. Purchase of Sugarcane 157,213,403 125,449,572
Other Direct Expenses: ~
Procurement Expenses 26.01.01 3,763,942 3,661,671
Production store and Packing Materials 26.01.02 6,650,246 5,182,103
Factory Salaries and Wages (Annexure-B) 26.01.03 248,609,311 230,944,909
Factory Repairs and Maintenance 26.01.04 20,262,838 19,813,282
Insurance 393,815 469,128
Fuel and Power 26.01.05 13,529,193 10,923,868
Depreciation (Annexure-c) 26.01.06 8,082,229 8,063,154
Other Factory Overhead 26.01.07 2,775,791 2,331,552
304,067,365 281,389,667
Less: Closing work in process (Annexure -D) 603,395 297,152
Total 460,974,525 407,054,523
26.01.01 Procurement Expenses
Loading and Unloading 3,158,908 3,157,783
Other Indirect Materials 344,076 238,970
Bonus for Cane Hauling 260,958 264,918
Total 3,763,942 3,661,671
26.01.02 Production store and Packing Materials
Packing Materials 2,683,382 2,592,634
Lime 1,016,569 939,168
Sulfer 1,767,225 807,430
Other Chemicals 1,183,070 842,871
Total 6,650,246 5,182,103
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka
FARIRGULEARS Notes 30June2023 || 30 June 2022
26.01.03 Factory Salaries and Wages (Annexure-B)
Cane Procurement 31,238,563 29,344,770
Transport 27,709,166 25,111,160
Mechanical 47,338,669 44,694,004
Chemical 25,639,949 23,159,600
Steam Genration 14,125,170 12,091,767
Power 9,761,405 8,607,184
Electrical Maintaince 14,209,091 11,639,140
Civil 7,347,742 6,663,865
Cane Development 71,239,556 69,633,419
Total 248,609,311 230,944,909
26.01.04 Factory Repairs and Maintenance
Cane Procurement 628,751 390,208
Transport 3,315,996 3,962,641
Mechanical 11,202,831 11,174,394
Chemical 502,259 468,476
Steam Generation 1,044,058 1,233,085
Power 343,510 154,760
Electrical Maintenance 1,771,619 1,351,341
Civil 1,438,689 1,044,434
Cane Development 15,125 33,943
Total 20,262,838 19,813,282
26.01.05 Fuel and Power _
Transport 6,236,588 4,616,196
Mechanical 2,133,811 1,513,130
Chemical 1,690 839
Steam Generation 629,683 682,990
Power 2,077,745 1,113,726
Electrical Maintenance 2,357,889 2,880,291
Cane Development 91,787 116,696
Total 13,529,193 10,923,868
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka
PARSLIAS s 30June 2023 || 30 June 2022
26.01.06 Depreciation: (Annexure-C)
Cane Procurement 483,719 482,578
Transport 565,158 563,824
Mechanical 3,002,727 2,995,640
Chemical 1,380,732 1,377,473
Steam Generation 771,322 769,502
Power 795,878 793,999
Electrical Maintenance 839,930 837,947
Cane Development 242,763 242,191
Total 8,082,229 8,063,154
26.01.07 Other Factory Overhead

Other Indirect Materials 153,054 162,502
Rent, Rate and Taxes 697,357 521,775
Cane Development Expenses 996,895 1,199,004
Traveling Expenses 730,654 307,583
Inaugural , Ceremonial and Entertainment 197,831 140,688
Total 2,775,791 2,331,552

27.00 Administrative Expenses
Staff and Labor Welfare 1,310,525 850,398
Training Expenses 264,152 97,484
Repairs and Maintenance 353,040 272,726
Other Indirect Materials 243,324 362,993
Rent, Rate and Taxes 1,415,162 1,287,959
Travelling and Conveyance 451,330 188,011
Postage and Telegram 141,056 101,957
Inaugural, Ceremonial and Entertainment 327,308 428,893
Advertising and Publicity 1,701,919 1,021,475
Bank Charges 105,158 143,929
Insurance 3,230,689 2,933,996
Legal Expenses 74,601 194,539
AGM, Borad Meeting Expenses 443,842 384,415
Miscellaneous Expenses 104,571 113,826
Guest House Exp. 141,712 119,102
Total 10,308,389 8,501,703

28.00 Head Office Overhead 4324613

- 4,324,613

The above amount represent expenses of the company incurred by BSFIC.

29.00 Selling and Distribution Expenses
Stocking and Loading 1,283,532 1,105,935
Depreciation 155,654 155,286
Advertising and Publicity 12,455 10,750
Total 1,451,641 1,271,971

8y




ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
- Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

p Amount in Taka
ARLIEILATE Notes 30june 2023 || 30 june 2022
30.00 Interest on Loan
Sonali Bank, Shilpo Bhaban Branch , Motijheel, Dhaka
Cash Credit A/C 213,246 - 80,000
Interest on ADP Loan 326,687 311,130
Golden Handshake Laon 1,688,875 1,340,377
Agril Credit A/C- 673000010 26,751,176 24,392,700
Agril Credit A/C- 673000011 36,431,771 31,715,255
Agril Credit A/C-673000012 38,959,783 33,477,612
Agril Credit A/C-462000006 54,285,601 38,277,490
Agril Credit A/C-462000007 48,363,094 38,548,848
Interest on BSFIC Loan 19,517,784 44,304,643
Interest on Operating loan 30,013,869 26,171,935
Total 256,338,640 238,619,990
31.00 Miscellaneous Income
House Rent Deduction from Salary 24,160 30,561
Rent from Market 393,700 305,160
Sale of Bagasses and Press Mud 167,020 945,226
Forfeiture of Security Money 3,170 17,625
Transport hire charge 6,600 9,293
Sundries Income 238,542 156,283
Electricity charge = 30,185
Discount received 2,203 18,219
Interest Income from Cane Growers Loan 3,234,002 1,718,395
Sales of Scrap 7,000 -
Total 4,076,397 3,230,947
32.00 Provision for Tax

33.00

34.00

35.00

As per the Minimum Tax applicable Income Tax Act, 2023 section 163. Minimum tax should be charged for

making provisions of current tax, which is as follows:
Sugar Sales
Molasses Sales (Net Value)

Tax on Gross Receipts
Tax on other Income (4,076,397*22.5%)
Total

Calculation of Net Asset Value Per Share (NAV)
Net Asset
Weighted average number of share outstanding

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholder
Weighted average number of share outstanding
EPS

Reconcilation of Net Operating Cash Flow Under Indirect Method:
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Operating Profit / Loss

285,955,500 288,398,636
59,709,543 23,052,288
345,665,043 311,450,924
0.60% 0.60%
2,073,990 1,868,706
917,189 786,471
2,991,180 2,655,177
(5,952,446,902)|  (5,434,227,879)
6,000,000 6,000,000
(992) (906)
(89.07)]] (88.27)]

(534,419,024)
6,000,000

(529,632,169)
6,000,000

(89.07)

(88.27)

(531,062,470)

Adjustment to Reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Increase/Decrease in Trade and Other Receiveables
Increase/Decrease in Inventories

Increase/Decrease in Loans & Advances

Increase/Decrease in Deposits

Increase/Decrease in Current Accounts with BSFIC Enterprises
Increase/Decrease in Creditors

Increase/Decrease in Provision for Leave Pay and Gratuity
Current Account with BSFIC Enterprises (Payable)
Depreciation Expenses

(526,213,172)

(876,338) 16,147,989
48,211,835 72,662,343
996,304 -

- (212,252)
(21,752,628) 1,888,415
(14,243,921) (16,352,078)

86,400,136 72,202,135
(3,414,107) 10,445,603
8,706,186 8,685,643
104,027,467 165,467,798

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

36.00 Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
89

(427,035,003) (360,745,375)



ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As atand for the year ended 30 June 2023

PARTICULARS

Notes

Amount in Taka

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Net cash provided by operating activities (427,035,003) (360,745,375)
No. of shares outstanding 6,000,000 6,000,000
NOCFPS (71.17) (60.12)

Significant Deviation:

1. Earning Per Share (EPS) has been negatively increased due to:
a. Net loss i.e. cost of production increased than previous year
2. Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) has been negatively increased due to increased of cash paid to

supplier and other expenses than previous year.

3. Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) ha been negatively increase due to total liability increase than previous year.
Attendence at Board Meeting during the year 2022-2023

No of Board No of Board
Name of Directors Designation Meeting held Meeting

during the year Attendance
Mr. Md. Arifur Rahman Apu ; Chairman(Grade-I) 5 5
Mr. Khandaker Azim Ahmed, NDC Director(Finance) 5 4
Mr. Md.Anuarul Alam Director( P&D) 5 1
IMr Jashim Uddin Akanda, FCMA Independent Director || 5 5
Mr. Md. Ashraf Ali ' Director(CDR) 5 3
Mr. Pulok Kanti Barua I Director(CDR) 5 1
Md. Monirul Islam, FCMA Independent Director 5 3
Mr. Md. Ataur Rahman Khan Director(P&E) 5 2
Md. Rabbik Hasan,FCMA Managing Director 5 5
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LTD

Schedule of Salary & Wages

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Annexure-B

Allocation Note Friday, June 30, 2023 | Thursday, June 30, 2022
Manufacturing (Cost of Goods Sold) 25.01.03 248,609,311 230,944,909
Administrative P/LA/C 70,967,131 _67,702,439
Total 319,576,442 298,647,348 |

Schedule Of Depreciation

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Annexure-C
Allocation Note | Friday, June 30, 2023 | Thursday, June 30, 2022
Manufacturing (Cost of Goods Sold) _25.01.06 8,082,229 8,063,154
Administrative P/LA/C 468,303 467,198
Selling and Distribution 29.00 155,654 155,286
Total 8,706,186 8,685,638
Working In Process
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Annexure-D
Particulars Quantity/ Value
1. Cane Crushed (M.T) 35,172
2. Sugar Production (M.T) 222
3. Working In Process (M.T) 9
4. Recovery (%) 7
6. Cane under process (M.T) 131
7. Cost of Cane under the process (Tk.) 591,075
8.Cost of chemical under process (TK) 12,320
8. Total work In Process Valueation (Tk.) 603,395
Schedule of Sugar Sales
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Annexure-E
Particulars Quantity/ M.T Value
1. Police 1,783 177,275,050
2. Ration 36 3,303,500
3. Free Sale 710 59,720,750
4 HO 253 26,195,200
5. Defence
6.Growers 196 19,461,000
Total : 2,978 285,955,500
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLS LTD
Schedule of Molasses Sales
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Annexure-F

[Steel Tank 2406.392 (M.T) |
Net Value 79,115,148
VAT 22.5% 13,434,649
LT 10% 5,970,956
Total Taka 59,709,543

Cane Growers Loan
For the Year ended 30 June 2023
Annexure-G
R eCRNETy Balance as on
Particulars Parincipal Interest Total Loan | during the year 30 June 2023
2022-2023

Upto 2020-21 24,642,860 - 24,642,860 71,418 24,571,442

2021-22 16,679,560 1,667,956 | 18,347,516 18,347,516 -
2022-23 32,340,022 3,234,002 | 35,574,024 | - 35,574,024
‘ 60,145,466

Schedule of Stock of Spares
For the Year ended 30 June 2023

Annexure-H
Code No. Particulars June 30 2023 June 30 2022
1 Construction materials 83,551 150,982
2 Iron, steel and Non-Ferus 3,232,538 2,368,347
3 Pipe, tubes and fitting 2,443,827 2,044,945
& Refactories 4,529,610 3,281,643
5 Fuel,0il and Lubricant 4,123,602 2,517,111
6 Production Materials 6,421,483 2,095,326
7 Paints and Vernishes 111,230 79,089
8 General Hardware 870,721 517,586
9 Loose tools 259,960 252,055
10 Domestic Equipment 22,411 22,465

11 Furniture & fixture - -
12 Cord Rops and Chains 68,755 77,812
13 Packing Materials 955,691 | 765,482
14 Chemical and Lab Equipment 106,446 208,178
15 Medical Supplies 7,832 7,721
16 Printing and stationary 634,596 380,946
17 Mechanical Spares 32,926,471 32,272,134
18 Electrical Spares 4,020,462 2,720,493

19 Office Equipment - -

20 miscellneous store mat 1,627,916 1,604,201

21 Transport/Garage Spares 2,589,127 2,827,091
Sub total , 65,036,229 54,193,607
22 : |Fertilizer & Pesticides 25,491,747 5,558,131
Total 90,527,976 59,751,738
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ZEAL BANGLA SUGAR MILLSLTD
Deferred Tax Calculations

For the year ended June 30,2023

Deferred Tax Liability:

Opening balance

Closing Balance

Deferred Tax expenses / (Income)
Deferred Tax Calculation

WDV of Fixed Assets

Total

Deferred Tax Liability @22.5%

Annexure-I
13,693,258
14,058,632
365,374

Accounts Base Tax Base Difference

140,818,910 78,336,102 62,482,808
140,818,910 78,336,102 62,482,808
14,058,632

Deferred tax is related to taxable temporary timing differences on account of depreciation on property,

plant and equipment.
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